# Queensland Perinatal Data Collection Perinatal Online User Guide

# 2023-2024 Version 1.0





#### Queensland Perinatal Data Collection Perinatal Online User Guide 2023-2024 Version 1.0

Published by the State of Queensland (Queensland Health), 2023



This document is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution 3.0 Australia licence. To view a copy of this licence, visit creativecommons.org/licenses/by/3.0/au

© State of Queensland (Queensland Health) 2023

You are free to copy, communicate and adapt the work, as long as you attribute the State of Queensland (Queensland Health).

For more information contact: Statistical Collections and Integration Unit, Statistical Services Branch, Department of Health, email <u>PERIMAIL@health.gld.gov.au</u>.

An electronic version of this document is available at https://www.health.gld.gov.au/hsu/collections/dchome

Disclaimer: The content presented in this publication is distributed by the Queensland Government as an information source only. The State of Queensland makes no statements, representations or warranties about the accuracy, completeness or reliability of any information contained in this publication. The State of Queensland disclaims all responsibility and all liability (including without limitation for liability in negligence) for all expenses, losses, damages and costs you might incur as a result of the information being inaccurate or incomplete in any way, and for any reason reliance was placed on such information.

## Contents

1.	Introduction	5
1.1	Requirements	5
1.2	Scope of the QPDC	5
1.3	Confidentiality	6
1.4	Security	6
1.5	The Queensland Perinatal Data Collection online form	6
1.6	Access/Registration to PNO system	7
1.7	PNO system and QPDC online form support	8
1.8	QPDC changes for 2023-2024	8
1.9	Data definitions	9
2.	Accessing the PNO system	10
2.1	Initial Log on	10
2.1.1	Saving PNO as a Bookmark or 'Favourites'	11
2.1.2	Logging on	13
2.1.3	Changing your password	14
2.1.4	Lost password question	15
2.1.5	Forgotten passwords	16
2.1.6	Logging out of the PNO system	16
3.	User Management	18
3.1	User access levels	18
3.1.1	Read only user	18
3.1.2	User	18
3.1.3	Deputy user	18
3.1.4	Primary user	19
3.1.5	QPDC user	19
3.2	Your user details	19
4.	User Administration (Primary/Deputy Users)	20
4.1	Create a new user/update existing user	20
4.1.1	Create a new user	20
4.1.2	Update existing user	21
4.1.3	Search/manage existing user	21
5.	Search/view/edit record	23
5.1	Search record	23
5.1.1	Select Mother drop down box	
5.1.2	Search using Mother's Family Name	
5.1.3	Search using wildcard (%) with the first letter of the Mother's Family Name	23
5.1.4	Search using the Mother's UR Number	
5.1.5	Search using wildcard (%) in conjunction with the first digit of UR Number	23
5.2	View/edit record	23
5.3	Record field types	23
5.3.1	Text fields	24
5.3.2	Single drop-down fields	24
5.3.3	Multiple selection fields	

5.3.4	Multiple selection morbidity trees	. 24
5.3.5	Single selection morbidity trees	. 24
5.3.6	Date fields	. 24
6.	Mother record	. 26
6.1	Search/Create Mother	. 26
6.2	Mother record functions	. 26
6.3	Enter new mother using HBCIS ePADT (Public Hospitals using HBCIS only)	. 27
6.4	Enter new mother manually	. 28
7.	Mother's details	. 29
7.1.1	Postcode look up/Search Address	. 29
7.1.2	Antenatal transfer	. 29
7.2	Previous pregnancies	. 29
7.3	Present pregnancy	. 29
7.3.1	Height and weight	. 29
7.3.2	Medical conditions	. 30
7.3.3	Primary maternity model of care	. 30
7.3.4	Maternity model of care at the onset of labour or non-labour caesarean section	. 30
7.4	Mother discharge	. 30
8.	Baby record	. 31
8.1	Search/Create new baby	. 31
8.2	Baby record functions	. 31
8.3	Labour and birth	. 33
8.3.1	Reasons for induction	. 33
8.3.2	Placental abnormalities	. 33
8.3.3	Labour and Birth complications	. 33
8.4	Baby birth details	. 34
8.4.1	Hepatitis B vaccination	. 34
8.5	Postnatal and discharge	. 34
8.5.1	Neonatal morbidities	. 34
8.5.2	Neonatal treatment	. 35
8.5.3	ICN/SCN	. 35
8.5.4	Congenital Anomaly	. 35
8.6	Mother discharge report	. 36
8.6.1	Puerperium Complications	. 36
8.6.2	Puerperium Procedures	. 36
8.7	Baby discharge	. 37
9.	Saving and validating	. 38
9.1	Saving mother/baby records	. 38
9.2	Validating mother/baby records	. 38
10.	Print preview	. 39
11.	Validate data	.41
11.1	Running validations	. 42
11.2	Printing the Validation Log	. 43
12	Extract data	45
		· ••

13.	Archived mothers	
14.	Reports	
14.1	Monthly Births Report	
14.2	Birth Report	
14.3	Mother and Baby Details Report	
15.	Important points to remember	
15.1	Screens	
15.2	Save	
15.3	Date fields	
15.4	Save and validate	
16.	Abbreviations	

# 1. Introduction

This user guide is specifically for users of Perinatal Online (PNO) which supports the collection of perinatal statistics via a Queensland Perinatal Data Collection (QPDC) Online form.

This user guide has been designed as a user-friendly document. It is structured to lead you through some of the frequently used processes of the QPDC online form step by step, providing you with the ability to successfully operate the application and reference its functions. Screen shots are from the pre-production environment so may differ slightly from production.

For a full description and definition of all the data items collected as part of the QPDC, users should refer to the *Queensland Perinatal Data Collection (QPDC) Manual* at <u>https://www.health.qld.gov.au/hsu/collections/QPDC.asp</u> for the completion and notification of perinatal data.

The QPDC online form will undergo re-design and maintenance to existing functions from time to time. The user guide will be reviewed annually therefore information in this user guide may change to describe new functionality and new pages may be included. Please contact the QPDC if you have any issues or queries regarding the content within this user guide via <u>PERIMAIL@health.qld.gov.au</u>

# 1.1 Requirements

The *Health Act 1937–1988* was replaced by the *Public Health Act 2005*. Chapter 6, Part 1 - Perinatal Statistics includes a requirement that perinatal data be provided to the Chief Executive of Department of Health for every baby born in Queensland. The Queensland Perinatal Data Collection commenced in November 1986. All unit record information collected by Statistical Collections and Integration Unit is treated as strictly confidential. All information collected is used for statistical purposes only.

# **1.2 Scope of the QPDC**

The QPDC Perinatal Online form (PNO) is required to be completed by all registered users in public hospitals and private hospitals who deliver babies, for all births occurring in Queensland. The scope of the Collection includes <u>all live births</u>, and stillbirths of at least 20 weeks gestation and/or at least 400 grams in weight.

Information relating to neonatal morbidity is collected up until the baby is discharged from the birth admission or up until the baby reaches 28 days of age. These online forms should be extracted to the Statistical Collections and Integration Unit within 35 days of the birth of a baby.

The quality of information produced from PNO depends on the accurate, consistent and timely completion of the QPDC online form. Completed QPDC online forms and subsequent extracts are validated and queries relating to missing, contradictory or ambiguous data are directed back to the hospital.

# 1.3 Confidentiality

Information collected using the QPDC online form relates to the pregnancy of women and birth of their babies. All data collected using the QPDC online form is strictly confidential and is only to be used for statistical purposes. All persons involved in the collection, processing, management and use of this information must ensure that patient confidentiality is maintained at all times.

# 1.4 Security

The QPDC online form contains highly sensitive and confidential information. Access to the PNO system is strictly controlled through the use of usernames and passwords. Users are issued with a Log on username that is unique and identifiable to the individual and a system generated unique password for their first Log on.

To ensure that PNO system conforms to the Queensland Department of Health security guidelines, user passwords require a combination of upper case and lower-case letters, numbers and symbols and must be at least 8 characters in length. For example, 'Pa\$\$word15'.

Users will be locked out after three unsuccessful attempts at logging on. Contact your local Primary User or Deputy User at your facility to unlock your account. Once unlocked, the user will then receive a new system generated email containing a new system generated password. If your password becomes compromised, you must immediately change your password. The QPDC online form has an 8 minute lock out. If the system is left unattended for 8 minutes, you will automatically be locked out. Any unsaved data will be lost when you log back in.

# **1.5 The Queensland Perinatal Data Collection online form**

The QPDC online form is an electronic version of the current MR63D PDF form. A woman's details can be entered, and updated at any stage throughout the pregnancy and birth.

There are currently four main screens to the form

- 1. **MOTHER** details which contains demographic information, previous pregnancy history, her current pregnancy information and discharge details
- 2. LABOUR AND BIRTH details relating to both the woman and baby
- 3. **BABY BIRTH DETAILS** relating to baby, and
- 4. **POSTNATAL AND DISCHARGE DETAILS** relating to postnatal information for baby and woman and discharge details.

The record can be updated, saved and validated at any time throughout the pregnancy and birth. To reduce the number of validations prior to each extract, it is advisable to validate the record once information has been entered in each screen e.g. validate the labour and birth section of the form after the birth and prior to transfer to postnatal ward. Records are unable to be submitted with any blank fields. If information is unknown e.g. Apgar's with a BBA, please use the override functionality and put in a reason for unknown values.

# 1.6 Access/Registration to PNO system

All users must be registered and granted access to the PNO system to access the QPDC online form. For registration/access to the PNO system contact the Primary User or Deputy Users of your hospital, or QPDC contact via <u>PERIMAIL@health.qld.gov.au</u>

After system registration you will receive two notification emails (see below). If you do not receive these emails within 1 hour, please notify the person who has registered your account or the QPDC.

- The notification email contains (screen shot one) your username (email address) and the link to the PNO system site (not shown) to be opened using Microsoft Edge. Note: other browsers may work however Microsoft Edge is the preferred browser. Please note, Internet Explorer was decommissioned as of the 30 June 2022 for all Queensland Health sites.
- The password email contains (screen shot two) your initial password (this password must be changed on your first logon) and link to the PNO system site (not shown) to be opened using your Microsoft Edge browser.

El 5 0 ↑ ↓ € File Message ADO	B 🗟 = BE PDF 🛛 Tell me what you wa		o Queensland Health I	Perinatal Data		Portal - Messay	ge (Plain Text)				3			
Colgrade X III Colete Archive Ro Delete	eply Reply Forward More - Respond	CHAPDC	MAC Failed PH1s To Manager ck Steps	i Mon ra	Rules •	Assign Ma Policy * Une	ark Categorize I ead * Tags	Follow Up *	Translate Edition	Q Zoom Zoom	Report Phishing PhishMe	) Insights	Send to OneNote OneNote	~
HSU_Test_PERIM Access to Quee	/AlL@health.qld.gov.au nsland Health Perinatal Dat	OHSU_Tests a Collection Web F	Portal										Ti	ie 12:59 PM
Deputy User, you have bee Your username is <u>him feet</u> Your password will arrive s <u>https:/</u> Perinatal Data Collection	n given access to the Queenslan ( <u>Chenith did gov.au</u> hority in a separate email. Once	nd Health Perinatal D	Nata Collection Web	Portal	change your pa	ssword.								



# **1.7 PNO system and QPDC online form support**

Users of the PNO system should contact their Primary User or Deputy Users for any system issues in the first instance. Should the Primary User or Deputy User not be available, or not able to assist, then users should contact the QPDC, Statistical Collections and Integration Unit (SCIU), Statistical Services Branch.

Office hours for the QPDC are 8:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday to Friday.

Email: PERIMAIL@health.gld.gov.au

# 1.8 **QPDC changes for 2023-2024**

For additional information on the QPDC File Format refer to: <u>https://www.health.qld.gov.au/hsu</u>

### **Change Description**

1. Anaesthesia indicator description update

Indicates whether anaesthesia was used for operative/<u>instrumental</u> delivery of the baby (caesarean, forceps or vacuum extraction).

Note: This is a text change only and does not require any system modification.

### 2. Person-Sex (code) description update

Reference file update to *Person-sex (code)* data item. The description for code 3 will change from 'Other' to 'X' to report the Baby's sex. This update is to align with Queensland Health approved data standards.

Note: This may require a change to the reference file in electronic system.

### 3. Amend wording of Cord pH

Cord pH updated to <u>Arterial</u> Cord pH to provide further clarity on the type of cord blood measured.

Note: This is a text change only and does not require any system modification.

#### **Change Description**

#### 4. Amend wording of Cord pH result

Cord pH result updated to <u>Arterial</u> Cord pH result to provide further clarity on the type of cord blood measured.

Note: This is a text change only and does not require any system modification.

## 1.9 Data definitions

The Queensland Health Data Dictionary (QHDD) is available on the Queensland Health web page. The dictionary contains data definitions from a number of sources e.g., Qld Health, the National Health Data Dictionary, and some from the HL7 standard. It catalogues many definitions in current use as well as listing those endorsed as standards by Qld Health. For more detail on any of the following data items please click on the link to the QHDD and follow the prompts.

#### QH Data Dictionary (health.qld.gov.au)

If you would like to obtain more information about the inventory of data elements please contact the Statistical Services Branch on email <u>DQSTD@health.gld.gov.au</u>.

# 2. Accessing the PNO system

The PNO system has been enhanced to meet National and State reporting requirements and should only be accessed by using Microsoft Edge. Instructions for using Microsoft Edge are shown below.

# 2.1 Initial Log on

The PNO system should only be accessed by using Microsoft Edge. Instructions for using Microsoft Edge are as follows.

Locating Microsoft Edge on your computer.

Click the Windows button.

Type Microsoft Edge in the search bar.

Click **Microsoft Edge** icon.



Copy and paste the link within the email into the URL section at the top of the Microsoft Edge screen.

On the Log on screen.

Click into the **Email address** field and enter your registered email address.

Click into **Password** and type your initial password.

Passwords are case sensitive and must be entered exactly the same as in the e-mail you receive, **ensuring there are no spaces before or after.** 

Click Log on.

Queensland Government Queensland Health
Perinatal Data Collection
(Production - v20.1)
@health.qld.gov.au
Password*
Password
Log on
Forgot password?

### 2.1.1 Saving PNO as a Bookmark or 'Favourites'

To save a webpage in Microsoft Edge the term 'favourites' is used. Other browsers may refer to it as a 'bookmark'. The following instructions describe how to create a 'favourites' in Microsoft Edge.

Click on 'Favourites' icon in the URL address bar at the top of the screen.

🗖 🏽 🖉 Login	× +		- 0 ×
$\leftrightarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\textcircled{a}$	https://access.health.qld.gov.au/pe	eri/periapp A <sup>N</sup> ⊖ 😭 🗲	· 🗿 🗿 ···
Cld Health Favourites	DSS 🤹 SSB Software Devel 🧣 QHEPS	Home Page 🕒 Home   Clinical Exc 🕒 SSB 🏮 CRDS 🧃 SSB - Annual Chan	> 🛛 🛅 Other favourites
		Queensland Government         Queensland Health         Perinatal Data Collection         (Production - v4.9.0)         Email address*         @health.qld.gov.au         Password*         Password         Log on         Forgot password?	

A pop-up box labelled 'Favourite' added will then appear.

								_	~
🗖 🖉 Login X +							-	U	×
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ $C$ $\bigcirc$ https://access.health.qld.gov.au/period	i/periapp		A <sub>0</sub>	e ★	€≣	Ē	ē		
🛅 Qld Health Favourites 🌓 DSS 💰 SSB Software Devel 🧃 QHEPS H	Home Page 🗅 Home   Clinical Exc 🗅 :	Favourite added		$\times$		>	🛅 🤇	Other favo	ourites
		Name Login							
	Queensland Governme	Folder 🛅 Favourite	es bar	$\sim$					
	Queensland Health								
	Perinatal Data Collection	More	Done	Remove					
	(Production - v4.9.0)								
	Email address∗								
	@health.qld.gov.au								
	Password*								
	Password								
	Log on								
	Forgot password?								

In the **Name** field, type the name of the bookmark (e.g. PNO system) and select the folder the 'favourite' is to be saved in. Click **Done**. This will save PNO system as a 'favourite' whenever you start Microsoft Edge.

🖸 🏽 Login x +				_	0	×
$\leftarrow$ $\rightarrow$ C $\bigcirc$ https://access.health.qld.gov.au/pe	ri/periapp	AN Q ★	ć 🕀	ē		
🞦 Qld Health Favourites 🌓 DSS 🤹 SSB Software Devel 🧣 QHEPS	Home Page 🕒 Home   Clinical Exc 🕒 : 🗾	×	>	0	ther favo	urites
	Queensland Governme Queensland Health Perinatal Data Collection (Production - v4.9.0) Email address* @health.qld.gov.au Password• Password• Password• Password	Remove				

To access PNO simply select it from the 'Favourites' dropdown menu in future sessions.



## 2.1.2 Logging on

Open the PNO system using a 'favourite' (Microsoft Edge), or the link included in email sent to you when you are first given access (section 1.6 above).

On the **Log on** screen, click into the **Email address** field and enter your Queensland Health email address, or if an external user, enter your hospital-based email address.

Click into **Password** and type your password.

Click on the Log on button.

Queensland Government
Perinatal Data Collection
Email address*
@health.qld.gov.au
Password*
Log on
Forgot password?

Read the security agreement and click on OK if you agree to use the system for its intended purpose.



### 2.1.3 Changing your password

For security purposes, system users are required to change the temporary (system generated) password issued to their own password on their initial log on. After your initial password change, users are able to update their password at any time. To meet Departmental security requirements, every 3 months users must update their password. As such the PNO system will prompt users to change their password.

Passwords are case sensitive (i.e. upper case or lower case) so take notice of whether you have the *Caps Lock* key activated. Passwords must be at least 8 characters long and must be a combination of upper case and lower-case letters, numbers and symbols. eg Pa\$\$word14.

Your password must not be entered as part of the response in either the Lost Password Question or Answer field.

Т∩	change v	our naces	word at an	v other time	click on	Change	Daseword
10	change y	oui passi	wulu al all	y ouner unne,		Unange	rasswuru.

Perinatal Data Collection	USER: HSU_TEST2@HEALTH.OLD.GOVJ Version: v4.8.4 PA1	Charles Dissuor Doub
Welcome to the Queenslar Your test succ Your	I Health Perinatal Data Collection Web Portal Iffu login was on 15-JAN 2019 at 7:55 AM statistical login was on 02-MAY-2019 at 2:0 AM cations 1-1 Message 1-1 1-1 1-1 1-1	

- In the **Current Password** field, type your current password.
- In the **New Password** field, type your new password.
- In the **Confirm Password** field, type your new password.
- In the Lost Password Question field, type your lost password question.
- In the **Answer** field, type your answer.
- Click Save.

Change Your Passv	word & Lost Password Recovery Question
	Note: You may change your password and/or your lost password question. If the lost password question and answer is populated you can choose to update or leave it as is.
Current Password	
New Password	
Confirm Password	
	password must at least 8 characters long, combination of upper and lower case alphabet, numeric character and special character. Password can not be re-used on the previous 5 changes. This is your Lost Password Question, which will assist you should you forget your password. Your password must not be entered as part of the response in effort the Lost Password.
Lost Password Question	
	Please note that you must always have BOTH a Lost Password Question and an Answer to continue using this application.
Answer	Cancel

You will get an error message if

- Your password has less than 8 characters/numbers.
- Your password is not a combination of characters, numbers and symbols.
- You do not confirm your new password.
- Your New Password and your Confirm Password are different.
- Your **New Password** has been used in the last 6 password changes.

If an error message occurs re-enter the passwords again and click Save.

The main menu screen will now be open.

### 2.1.4 Lost password question

A lost password question and answer needs to be set up in case you have forgotten your password. It is important that this be something that you will remember as your personal question and answer.

From the Main Menu screen, click Change Password.

In the Lost Password Question enter your Lost Password Question and Answer.



The question should be as specific as possible, e.g. What town was I was born in? or My mums maiden name?

Please be aware that the lost password answer is **case sensitive** – if you need to answer this question in future you will need to type it exactly the same as how you set it, including using the same upper case and lower case.

Once you **Save**, you will be returned to the **Main Menu** screen.

### 2.1.5 Forgotten passwords

If you have forgotten your password, from the log on screen click on the **Forgot password?** Type in your email address then click **Reset Password**.

Note: This functionality should be used if you have had two unsuccessful attempts at logging in to prevent your account being locked.

Queensland Government Queensland Health	
Perinatal Data Collection (Production - v20.1) Email address*	Queensland Government Queensland Health
@health.qld.gov.au	Perinatal Data Collection
Password* Password	(Production - v20.1) Log on Reset Password
Log on	Email address*
Forgot password?	@health.qld.gov.au

A pop-up box will appear. To reset your password, Click **OK**.

An email will be sent to you advising you of your new password. Check your incoming emails for your new password.

	Account Verification	
	To verify your identity, please enter the answer to your lost password security question.	
1	Question	
	Answer	
	Submit Answer	>
	If you do not know the answer to your lost password security question please contact a Deputy User or Primary User at your hospital to have your account reset.	

To verify your identity, you will need to type in your lost password security question answer and click on the **Submit Answer**.

Contact your Primary User or Deputy User in your facility firstly, or the QPDC, if you have forgotten your **Lost Password** answer or the **Forgot Password** process is not working as expected, such as the lost password question is not retrieved, or you don't receive the email.

### 2.1.6 Logging out of the PNO system

You can log out of the PNO system from any screen within the QPDC Online Form.

<u>PLEASE NOTE</u>: any changes made that have not been saved (by clicking Save) will not be saved on exit.

Click Logout (top right-hand side of the screen).



You will be returned to the main log on screen.

# 3. User Management

## 3.1 User access levels

The PNO system allows 5 levels of access for various actions involving the QPDC Online Form, User Management, Data Validations etc. They are (from lowest to highest access level) as follows:

USER LEVELS	LOCATION/TYPEOF USER
Read Only User	Hospital Staff
User	Hospital Staff
Deputy User	Hospital Staff
Primary User	Hospital Staff
QPDC User	Queensland Perinatal Data Collection Staff

### 3.1.1 Read only user

There can be any number of Read Only Users for each hospital. Read Only Users

- Are responsible for maintaining their own user access (i.e. changing passwords etc.)
- Have Read Only User access to all records for the hospital/s they are registered for.
- Can be registered for Read Only User access for more than one hospital.

### 3.1.2 User

There can be any number of Users for each hospital. Users

- Are responsible for maintaining their own user access (i.e. changing passwords etc.)
- Have access to all records for the hospital/s they are registered for.
- Can validate individual record data.
- Can be registered for more than one hospital.

### 3.1.3 Deputy user

There can be any number of Deputy Users for each hospital. Deputy Users

- Are responsible for maintaining access for the staff in their area.
- Are responsible for maintaining their own user access (i.e. changing passwords etc.)
- Have access to all records for the hospital/s they are registered for.
- Override confirmed validations errors (e.g. unknown Apgar's with a BBA).
- Can validate all record data (and extract data if the Primary User is unavailable).
- Can be registered for more than one hospital.

### 3.1.4 Primary user

There can only be one Primary User for each hospital. Primary Users

- Are the highest level Hospital User.
- Are responsible for maintaining access for the staff in their area.
- Are responsible for maintaining their own user access (i.e. changing passwords etc.)
- Can register and maintain the Facility Level user accounts.
- Have access to all records for the hospital/s they are registered for.
- Override confirmed validations errors (e.g. unknown Apgar's with a BBA).
- Can validate all record data.
- Are responsible for extracting data to SCIU each month.
- Can be registered for more than one hospital.

### 3.1.5 **QPDC** user

QPDC Users: Management and staff within QPDC in Statistical Services Branch (SSB). QPDC users will have access to

- All records and associated functionality (i.e. validations and extracts).
- Override confirmed validations errors (e.g. unknown Apgar's with a BBA).
- Can register and maintain the Primary User accounts.

### 3.2 Your user details

Every user is responsible for maintaining their own user details such as passwords & lost password questions. To update your password or lost password question, follow <u>Section</u> <u>2.1.5 Forgotten Passwords</u>

You can view (but not change) your

- Username
- Client Type
- Active Flag
- The facilities that you have access to
- The security level for those facilities
- Valid From and Valid To dates

If you require any change to the above items please contact your Primary User or Deputy User (at your hospital) or a QPDC contact via email PERIMAIL@health.qld.gov.au.

# 4. User Administration (Primary/Deputy Users)

The following functions of the Perinatal Online form are only available to hospital users who have been allocated Primary User or Deputy User access.

## 4.1 Create a new user/update existing user

The Primary User or Deputy User can create and manage the Users at their facility i.e. all staff that will be entering details at your facility. Initially, check the User's email address in the Outlook Address book to ensure access is granted to the correct person.

From the Main Menu screen

- Click **User Accounts** and the Hospital User Management Options screen will appear.
- To create a new user who has never had access to the PNO system before, select **Create a New User Account.**
- If a user has been granted access before but requires updating, select **Update Existing Users and/or their Access to Facilities under your Jurisdiction.**

### 4.1.1 Create a new user

The Primary User or Deputy User can create a new User account then grant the User access to a facility.

- Click Create a New User Account.
- Enter details in the Create User fields, check the username details (this is the user's unique Outlook email address), then click **Create**.
- Automatically generated emails containing the link and username will be sent in one email and the system generated password in a separate email.
- If the emails do not arrive, check the username that has been entered as this must be the user's unique Outlook email address.

The Grant User Access to Facilities within your Jurisdiction box will now be available.

- Select the Facility from the **Facility** drop down field.
- Select the security level from the **Security Level** drop down field.
- Select the valid from (or start date) from the Valid From drop down field.
   Date will default to current date but may be back dated or may be in the future.
- Select the valid to (or end date) from the Valid To drop down field (if required).
   Date will default to current date but may be back dated, future dated or left blank.
- Click on Add Access
- Click on Save Access

The User will now have access to the PNO system.

## 4.1.2 Update existing user

The Primary User or Deputy User can manage the User accounts of all staff using the Perinatal Online system at their facility.

Management of existing Users includes unlocking user accounts, adding user access to your facility and amending user accounts (active status, user levels and account valid dates).

To update an existing user

- From the Main Menu screen, click the User Account label.
- Select Update Existing User and/or their Access to facilities under your Jurisdiction.

This will display the User Accounts screen. The User Accounts screen allows the Primary User and Deputy User to search for a specific User and display User accounts with a specific status (e.g. inactive and locked).

The screen also contains Select Output buttons that allow the Primary User or Deputy User to select the types of user accounts they would like listed on the screen. Selection of one of these buttons will retrieve a list of selected users to appear. The buttons available to a Primary User or Deputy User include

- Users at Facilities Under Your Jurisdiction lists users at facilities that the Primary User or Deputy User has administration responsibility for.
- Users With No Access To Any Facilities lists users that have User accounts but do not have access to any facilities.
- Users Assigned To Facilities Outside Your Jurisdiction lists users that have access to facilities that a Primary User or Deputy User has not administration responsibility for.
- **Inactive User Account** lists users that have an inactive user account.
- Locked User Accounts lists users that have a locked user account.
- All displays all five lists of users.

The account of each listed User can be accessed by clicking on the edit button to the left of the Users family name. The update screen also has a link to allow a Primary User or Deputy User to edit their user account details. The edit button is located in the Update Personal Account box.

### 4.1.3 Search/manage existing user

The Primary User or Deputy User can search the User accounts of all staff that will be using the Perinatal Online system at your facility.

To search for an existing user

- From the **Main Menu** screen, click the **User Account** label.
- Select Update Existing User and/or their Access to facilities under your Jurisdiction.

• In the User Accounts screen, enter the username (email address) or First Name or Family name and click **Go**.

Any users matching the criteria will be displayed. The user's account can be accessed by clicking on an **Edit** button beside the user's name. Clicking the **Edit** button will allow the Primary User or Deputy User to manage the user account by

- Adding/modifying the users contact telephone number.
- Checking/changing the Active or Inactive field a user can be made inactive if they are on a short period of leave but intend to return to their previous role.
- Add facility access.
- Amend the security level.
- Enter a Valid To date.

# 5. Search/view/edit record

# 5.1 Search record

From the main screen, click on either the **Go** button against your facility or click on the **Search/Create Mother** button.

From the **Search/Create Mother** screen, there are five methods to search for a women's record.

### 5.1.1 Select Mother drop down box

Records are sorted and listed in alphabetical order by woman's family name and contains all current women (not yet extracted) for the facility you have selected. Locate the woman's record you require by using the up and down arrow keys, scrolling up and down using the scroll bar or scrolling up and down with the mouse.

### 5.1.2 Search using Mother's Family Name

Type the woman's full family name in the **Family Name** field and click **Find**. The results of your search will be listed.

# 5.1.3 Search using wildcard (%) with the first letter of the Mother's Family Name

Type the first letter/s of the family name followed by % (e.g. P%) and Click **Find**. This will list all records commencing with the 1<sup>st</sup> letter/s of the family name within the facility you are accessing. The results of your search will be listed.

### 5.1.4 Search using the woman's UR Number

Type the woman's UR number in the UR number field and Click **Find**. The results of your search will be listed.

# 5.1.5 Search using wildcard (%) in conjunction with the first digit of UR Number

Type the first digit/s of the UR number followed by % (e.g. 5%) and Click **Find**. This will list all records commencing with the 1<sup>st</sup> digit/s of the UR number within the facility you are accessing. The results of your search will be listed.

## 5.2 View/edit record

When you have selected the woman's record you want to view or edit, click **Edit** next to the woman's record. You will now be in the woman's record.

## 5.3 Record field types

The Perinatal Online form guides the user through completion of entry of pregnancy and birth information. Generally, if a field is visible it should have the relevant information entered. Accordingly, throughout the online form, there are specific selections that prompt a hidden field to appear. When this occurs, the online form will be expanded to display the additional field(s). These fields are mandatory fields and **must** be completed. There are six different ways to enter data when completing the QPDC Online form.

### 5.3.1 Text fields

Click in the fields and enter the responses/text.

### 5.3.2 Single drop-down fields

Click the drop-down box then click on the correct response from the drop-down list.

### 5.3.3 Multiple selection fields

Throughout the online form, there are certain fields where more than one selection may be made e.g. antenatal care, assisted conception, non-pharmacological analgesia. To select more than one field, hold the **control key** while clicking on the appropriate fields. If free text needs to be added, click **Other** and the curser will appear in the free text box.

### 5.3.4 Multiple selection morbidity trees

When **Yes** is selected in certain fields, a tab appears with a counter beside it. The counter will show how many items were selected from the pop-up morbidity tree.

Upon entering this tab, a pop-up morbidity tree appears listing the most commonly reported conditions in this field. Click on the blue text of the morbidity/procedure on the left-hand side and the selection/s will appear on the right hand side of the form. All relevant morbidities/procedures should be selected. If a morbidity/procedure is selected in error, click on the cross to delete the selection.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in the free text field and **Save** before clicking **Back to Mother/Baby**.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other (specify)** from the very bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree and enter the condition in the free text field. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate them with a comma. Ensure you Save the entry before clicking Back to Mother/Baby. If you wish to delete the **Other (specify)** entry, Click the **X** next to the **Delete** label.

### 5.3.5 Single selection morbidity trees

The following fields will only allow one selection to be made.

- Reason for Forceps/Vacuum Extraction.
- Reason for Admission to ICN/SCN.

If there is more than one reason for forceps/vacuum extraction, select the most severe and record the remaining conditions in Pregnancy Complications, Medical Conditions or Labour and Birth Complications.

If there is more than one reason for admission to ICN/SCN, select the most severe and record the remaining conditions in Neonatal Morbidities or Congenital Anomalies.

### 5.3.6 Date fields

The same process is followed when completing all date fields throughout the form.

• The calendar will default to the current date.

- The Estimated Date of Confinement is the only date that can be a future date.
- Dates are entered by clicking on the calendar button beside the date field.
- The keyboard cannot be used to enter a date directly into the field.
- In the calendar box that appears, select the year by clicking on the drop-down arrow in the year field then click on the year.
- Select the month by either clicking on the drop-down arrow OR clicking on the arrows either side.
- Point the cursor over the required day until a hand (pointer) icon appears. Click on the required day.

The selected date will then appear in the field in which you are working.

# 6. Mother record

## 6.1 Search/Create Mother

If your facility is not visible in the **Select Facility** box, click on the drop-down box and select the required facility. There are multiple sections displayed to the user such as Mother, Mother's Details, Previous Pregnancy, Present Pregnancy and Mother Discharge.

## 6.2 Mother record functions

The following table outlines functionality available on the Mothers Details main screen.

BUTTONS	ACTIONS BY CLICKING BUTTONS
Cancel	Takes you back to <b>Search/Create Mother</b> Screen. All information not saved prior to clicking this button will be lost.
Create/Search Mothers	To create a new woman record or to search for a woman whose details have already been entered.
Delete	Deletes all information from screen and database for this record. Users will be prompted to enter a reason for the deletion.
Report Print Preview	Preview Report prior to printing.
	Print Report.
Save	Saves data in current screen.
Proceed	Saves baby UR Number and/or date of birth and opens the Edit Labour screen (note: this button is only available when creating a new baby record).
Validate This Record	Validates record at any stage throughout pregnancy and birth.
Add New Baby Baby Details Baby Dot. 1 Baby DOB. 09-DEC-2021 Time Of Birth 0446 Mother Id 0446 Labour and Birth EditLabour Baby Birth Details Edit Baby Birth Details Postnatal and Discharge Details Edit Postnatal	To add a baby or view / amend the Labour, Birth or Postnatal details (see below for more detailed information regarding specific buttons). The <b>Baby Details</b> section on the <b>Mother Details</b> screen allows birth details to be accessed after the baby UR and/or date of birth has been entered and saved (i.e. there is a record available for the baby)

Add New Baby	Adds a new baby record. This field appears once woman's demographic details have been entered and saved.
Edit Labour	To view or amend the woman's labour details (opens the Labour and Birth Screen).
Edit Baby Birth Details	To view or amend the baby's details (opens the Baby Birth Details Screen).
Edit Postnatal	To view or amend Postnatal and Discharge Details (opens the Postnatal and Discharge Details screen).
Record Validated? No	Identifies whether validation has been completed.
Record Extracted? No	Identifies whether extraction has occurred.
Top	Takes you to the top of the screen.

# 6.3 Enter new woman using HBCIS ePADT (Public Hospitals using HBCIS only)

From 1 July 2015 (restricted to Public Hospitals using HBCIS) a new function will allow a web service call from PNO to ePADT (to access HBCIS data), to search for a UR No., and if found, retrieve basic woman demographic details into the PNO form. If UR No. is not found in ePADT then no data will be returned and will need to be entered manually.

- Enter the woman's UR No. to be queried.
- Click the Retrieve HBCIS Details button next to the UR No.
- If the UR No. exists in ePADT, the fields in grey below will be returned (if any grey items are not in ePADT the field will be blank and will need to be manually entered).
- If any data needs to be modified, click into the field and overtype the data. This will not alter any data in ePADT as it is a one-way link.
- When retrieved, click Save

User must initially save the woman's record before continuing on to successfully complete the remaining sections of the QPDC Online form.

	- Cove			
Validate This Record	Save			
Mother				
mother				
Id: Record Validated? No Record	Extracted? No			
186498		Retrieve HBCIS De	tails 🗸	
From the Manual		Concerned Characteristic		
PERINATAL	TEST	MOTHER		
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		,		
Date of Admission	Date of Birth	Estimated		
Use Calendar button	Jse Calendar button	No 💌		
to select date	o select date			
Mother's Details				
Date of Confinem	ent			
Place of Deliv	ery		_	
Usual Resider	ce 3 TEST STREET			
Suburb or to	BRISBANE	Post	code 4000	AUST POST SITE
St	ate Queensland		×	
Mother's Country of Bi	rth Australia	Australia		
Indigenous Stat	us Neither Aborigina	I nor Torres Strait Is. O	igin 🔽	
Marital Stat	us Married/De Facto	Mother's Accomm	odation Status	Select- 💌

## 6.4 Enter new woman manually

If this is the first time a woman has been at the hospital and does not have a record in HBCIS already, or this is a Private Hospital, then the woman's demographic details will need to be entered in manually.

In the Mother section, enter the following details in the appropriate boxes

- UR Number.
- Family name.
- First Given Name.
- Second Given Name.
- Date of Admission (may be left blank if woman is to be admitted at a later date).
- Woman's Date of Birth.
- Estimated Is the woman's date of birth estimated? select either Yes or No.
- Click Save.

User must initially save the woman's record before continuing on to successfully complete the remaining sections of the QPDC Online form.

# 7. Woman's details

### 7.1.1 Postcode look up/Search Address

If a woman's usual residence is overseas click on the word **Postcode** to see a list of overseas locations and codes to use in the address fields.

Start typing an address into the **Search Address** 'Enter a location' box to use the interactive location search function that will show all addresses available as you type. When you see the address that you are searching for, click on that address in the list to bring the corresponding details back to the **Usual Residence** fields.

### 7.1.2 Antenatal transfer

If the woman has been transferred antenatally, the following fields will appear and require responses:

- Reasons Transferred The **Reason for Transfer** pop-up morbidity tree will appear.
- Time of Transfer.
- Transferred From If the place of transfer is a planned home birth, this can be found under **Planned Home Birth**.

# 7.2 Previous pregnancies

Complete the **Previous Pregnancies** section using the drop-down boxes.

If you select **Yes** in **Any Previous Pregnancies**, further fields will appear.

If the last birth was a multiple birth and more than one method was used e.g. twins - vaginal non-instrumental and forceps, click on the first method used, hold down the **Control** key and select the other method used. Both methods will then be highlighted.

Note: Click on the help button for additional information and hints.

Previous Pregnancies	
How to complete the 'Previous Pregnancy' field	Help

# 7.3 Present pregnancy

Complete the **Present Pregnancy** section using the calendar, the drop-down boxes and free text when applicable.

## 7.3.1 Height and weight

The woman's height and weight are to be reported in whole numbers i.e. 95kg instead of 95.3kg. As these fields are self-reported, they may be collected at any stage throughout the pregnancy, birth and postnatal period.

## 7.3.2 Medical conditions

If the woman had any medical conditions that affected the management of the pregnancy, click **Yes** and enter the details in the **Medical Conditions** pop-up morbidity tree. Click on the blue text condition for the appropriate medical conditions relevant to this pregnancy. These conditions will appear on the right-hand side of the pop-up screen.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in free text. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate them with a comma. **Save** before clicking **Back to Mother**.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other** from the bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree. Enter the condition in the free text field.

Ensure you Save the entry before clicking Back to Mother.

If a user changes a selection from **Yes** to **No**, for any Medical Conditions in the Present Pregnancy section, a check message will pop-up. Click **OK** to continue or **Cancel** to keep the preselected conditions. **Save** any changes made. This check functionality is standard across the PNO system for sections of the QPDC Online form.

### 7.3.3 Primary maternity model of care

The primary maternity model of care a female received for the majority of pregnancy care. For more detailed information refer to section 5.43 in the QPDC Instruction Manual which is found at <u>https://www.health.qld.gov.au/hsu/collections/pdc</u>.

# 7.3.4 Maternity model of care at the onset of labour or non-labour caesarean section

For maternity model of care a female received at the onset of labour or non-labour caesarean section. For more detailed information refer to section 5.44 in the QPDC Instruction Manual which is found at <u>https://www.health.qld.gov.au/hsu/collections/pdc</u>.

# 7.4 Mother discharge

Complete the **Mother Discharge** section using the calendar, the drop-down boxes and free text where applicable.

This section appears at the bottom of the Mother's screen below the **Present Pregnancy** section details. The **Mother Discharge** section can also be accessed from the **Postnatal and Discharge Details** screen by clicking on **Mother Specific Discharge Details** button.

# 8. Baby record

# 8.1 Search/Create new baby

To **create** a new baby record click, **Add New Baby** according to the number of babies born e.g. singleton – click once; twins – click twice to create two baby records, etc.

For all babies, enter the baby's UR No (may be blank if baby is stillborn), baby's date of birth (if known at time of entry) and time of birth (if known at time of entry). Click **Proceed**.

The labour, birth and baby details screen will now open.

To **enter/amend** the baby birth details, click on the **Edit Labour** button on the Mother's Details screen. If an extra baby is added by mistake, click on the **Edit Labour** tab of this baby to enter the **Labour and Birth** screen details. Click Delete.

## 8.2 Baby record functions

The following table outlines functionality available on the Labour and Birth main screen.

BUTTONS	ACTIONS BY CLICKING BUTTONS
Cancel	Takes you to <b>Search/Create Mother</b> screen. Information not saved prior to clicking this button will be lost.
Delete	Deletes all information from screen regardless whether already saved for this record.
Report Print Preview	Preview Report prior to printing.
Back to Mother	Takes you back to the <b>Mother Details</b> screen.
Validate This Record	Validates record at any stage during pregnancy and birth.
	Print Report (report should be printed in landscape).
Save	Saves data in current screen.
Proceed	Saves baby UR Number and/or date of birth and opens the Edit Labour screen (note: this button is only available when entering a new baby).
Validate This Record	Validates record at any stage during pregnancy and birth.

Add New Baby Baby Details Baby DOB. 09-DEC-2021 Time Of Birth 0446 Aother Id 0446 Labour and Birth Edit Labour Baby Birth Details Edit Baby Birth Details Postnatal and Discharge Details Edit Postnatal	To add a baby or view / amend the Labour, Birth or Postnatal details (see below for more detailed information regarding specific buttons). The <b>Baby Details</b> section on the <b>Mother Details</b> screen allows birth details to be accessed after the baby UR and/or date of birth has been entered and saved (i.e. there is a record available for the baby).
Add New Baby	Adds a new baby record. This field appears once woman's demographic details have been entered and saved.
Edit Labour	To view or amend the woman's labour details (opens the Labour and Birth Screen).
Edit Baby Birth Details	To view or amend the baby's details (opens the Baby Birth Details Screen).
Edit Postnatal	To view or amend Postnatal and Discharge Details (opens the Postnatal and Discharge Details screen).
Baby Specific Discharge Details	Takes you directly to <b>Postnatal and Discharge</b> <b>Details</b> screen for baby details and maternal puerperium complications and procedures.
	Multiple Births: Use drop down box in <b>Change Baby</b> field to switch between babies.
Saby Details Screens  . Labour and Birth (Baby's page) 2. Bay Sim Details 3. Pestinatal and Discharge Details	Indicates entry of the <b>Labour and Birth</b> screen. You can also click on the 2. Baby Birth Details or 3. Postnatal and Discharge Details links to open the relevant screen.
Baby Details Screens  1. Labour and Birth (Baby's page)  2. Baby Birth Details  3. Postnatal and Discharge Details	Indicates entry of the <b>Baby Birth Details</b> screen. You can also click on the 1. Labour and Birth or 3. Postnatal and Discharge Details links to open the relevant screen.
Baby Details Screens         1. Labour and Birth (Baby's page)         2. Baby Birth Details         3. Postnatal and Discharge Details	Indicates entry of the <b>Postnatal and Discharge</b> <b>Details</b> screen. You can also click on the 1. Labour and Birth or 2. Baby Birth Details links to open the relevant screen.
Top	Takes you to the top of the screen.

# 8.3 Labour and birth

Complete the **Labour and Birth (Baby's page)** section using the drop-down boxes and free text where applicable. Ensure values have been entered in **ALL** fields.

There are two options for entering Membranes Ruptured

Enter the date and time membranes ruptured and the system will calculate the number of Days, Hours and Minutes. Date and time of birth are required and must be after the membranes ruptured date for the system to calculate the correct length of time.

### OR

Enter the number of Days, Hours and Minutes (Membrane ruptured date and time must be blank). If the date and time that the membranes ruptured is unknown, enter 999 in the days field, 99 in the hours and minutes fields.

### 8.3.1 Reasons for induction

Some responses will result in other fields being displayed e.g. if the woman was induced, the **Main Reason for Induction** button will appear to prompt the entry of the main reason for the induction of labour. Click on **Reason** and the **Main Reason for Induction** pop-up morbidity tree will appear. Click on the appropriate condition from the **Choose a Reason for Induction** pop-up morbidity tree. If there is more than one reason for the induction, follow the prompts and select up to two additional reasons. You will automatically be taken back to the main **Labour and Birth screen** with the selected condition displayed.

### 8.3.2 Placental abnormalities

If there are placental abnormalities, selecting **Yes** will result in the **Options** field appearing. Click on the correct response or click on **Other** and enter free text in the field provided.

### 8.3.3 Labour and Birth complications

If the woman had any **Labour and Birth Complications**, Click **Yes** and select the complications from the **Choose a Birth Complication** pop-up morbidity tree. Click on the blue text condition then select the appropriate labour and birth complications. These conditions will appear on the right-hand side of the screen.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in free text. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate with a comma. **Save** before clicking **Back to Mother**.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other** from the bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree. Enter the condition in the free text field. Ensure you **Save** the entry before clicking **Back to Mother**.

If you change a selection from **Yes** to **No**, a pop-up box will appear. Click **OK** to continue or **Cancel** to keep the preselected conditions. **Save** any changes made.

When you have completed the woman's labour details, Click **Save**.

# 8.4 Baby birth details

To enter/amend the baby birth details, click on the **Edit Baby Birth Details** button on the Mother's Details screen or click the **Baby Birth Details** link from the Labour and Birth or Postnatal and Discharge Details screens. Complete the **Baby Details** section using the calendar, the drop-down boxes or free text when applicable.

When **Born Alive** is selected, the APGAR scores, regular respirations and calculate the APGAR score fields will appear.

If this is a multiple birth, **SAVE** details then change to baby number 2 by clicking on the dropdown box on the Labour and Birth screen and selecting the required baby. Follow the same process as with baby number 1, **SAVE** all entries/changes.

When you have completed the Baby Birth Details screen, click on the **SAVE** button.

You may edit the record by clicking on

Edit button which will take you to the specific field to be amended.

Mother Record button which will take you to the woman's details.

Labour Record will take you to the labour and birth screen.

Baby's Birth Details will take you to the baby birth details screen.

Baby's Postnatal Record will take you to the postnatal and discharge details screen.

### 8.4.1 Hepatitis B vaccination

If Hepatitis B Vaccination is not administered in the Birth Suite, leave this field at **Select**. This will ensure a validation is generated prior to discharge to remind the Midwives in the postnatal ward to amend this field.

## 8.5 Postnatal and discharge

Complete the **Postnatal Details** using the drop-down boxes and free text when applicable. To change between babies in a multiple birth, click on the drop-down arrow in the **Change Baby** field.

### 8.5.1 Neonatal morbidities

A **Yes** response will prompt **Neo. Morbidities** button to appear. Click the **Neo. Morbidities** button. The **Choose a Neonatal Morbidity** pop-up morbidity tree will appear. Click on the blue text condition/s from the **Choose a Neonatal Morbidity** pop-up morbidity tree. Select all applicable morbidities. These conditions will appear on the right-hand side.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in the free text field and **Save** before exiting.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other** from the bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree and enter the condition in the free text field. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate them with a comma.

If you wish to delete any of the **Other (specify)** entries, Click the **X** next to **Delete**.

After completing your selection/s, click **SAVE** then click the **Back to Baby** button.

### 8.5.2 Neonatal treatment

If **Neonatal Treatment** is **Yes**, the neonatal treatment box appears. Select the appropriate responses. Hold the **control key** to make multiple selections. If selecting **Other** the field **must** be completed with free text. All neonatal treatment selections will be highlighted.

### 8.5.3 ICN/SCN

A Yes response will result in the ICN days and SCN days fields appearing where a response must be entered in **both** fields. If the baby was admitted to either nursery for less than 24 hours, round up and enter as 1 day. A Yes response will also prompt the **Reason** button to appear. Click the **Reason** button. The **Choose a Reason for Admission to ICN/SCN** pop-up morbidity tree will appear. Click on the blue text condition from the **Choose a Reason for Admission to ICN/SCN** pop-up morbidity tree. Only 1 selection can be made. The selected condition will appear on the right of **Reason for Admission to ICN/SCN** button.

If **Other (specify)** is selected, a text box will appear. This is a mandatory field and must be completed.

If there is more than one reason for admission to ICN/SCN, enter the **most severe** reason in this field and enter the other reasons in the neonatal morbidity or congenital anomaly field.

### 8.5.4 Congenital Anomaly

A Yes response will prompt the Cong. Anomalies button to appear. Click the Cong. Anomalies button. The Choose a Congenital Anomaly pop-up morbidity tree will appear.

- **Position:** First select the position of the congenital anomaly from the drop-down box.
- 1.1. The **Position** may not be applicable for all congenital anomalies that are reported e.g. Syndromes, Gastroschisis, neural tube defects.

1.2. If the **Position** is left at **Not stated** a validation will be generated.

• **Status:** Click the drop-down box and select the status of the congenital anomaly.

1.3. If the Status is left at Not stated/Unknown a validation will be generated.

• **Diagnosed antenatally:** Click the drop-down box and select the appropriate response for the congenital anomaly.

After selecting Position, Status and Diagnosed Antenatally then, select the blue text congenital anomaly from the **Choose a Congenital Anomaly** pop-up morbidity tree. Your selection/s will appear on the right-hand side of the pop-up morbidity tree.

If Other (specify) is selected, a text box will appear. The **Position** and **Status** selections from the top left-hand side of the form will transfer across automatically to the **Other** (specify) field. These selections can also be changed using the drop-down arrows. When entering details in the **Other** (specify) field, ensure you **SAVE** the entry before clicking **Back To Baby**.

If you wish to delete the **Other (specify)** entry, Click the **X** next to **Delete**.

After completing your selection/s, click **Back to Baby**.

# 8.6 Mother discharge report

The **Mother Discharge Report** section is located in Postnatal and Discharge Details of the Baby Details screen.

Two sections must be completed before discharging a woman.

Questions relating to Puerperium Complications and Puerperium Procedures, and

Mother Specific Discharge Details such as discharge status, date of discharge, early discharge program.

Complete the **Mother Discharge Report** using the drop-down boxes and free text where applicable for the **Puerperium Complications** and **Puerperium Procedures**. Then Click on the **Mother Specific Discharge Details** button.

### 8.6.1 **Puerperium Complications**

A Yes response will prompt the **Puerperium Comp** button to appear. Click the **Puerperium Comp** button. The **Choose a Puerperium Complication** pop-up morbidity tree will appear. Click on the blue text condition/s from the **Choose a Puerperium Complication** pop-up morbidity tree. Your selection/s will appear on the right-hand side of the pop-up morbidity tree.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in free text. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate with a comma. **Save** before clicking **Back to Mother**.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other** from the bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree. Enter the condition in the free text field. Ensure you **Save** the entry before clicking **Back to Mother**.

If you wish to delete the **Other (specify)** entry, tick then Click **X** next to **Delete**.

After completing your selection/s, click **Back to Baby**.

### 8.6.2 **Puerperium Procedures**

A Yes response will prompt **Procs. And Opers.** button to appear. Click the **Procs. And Opers.** button. The **Choose a Puerperium Procedure** pop-up morbidity tree will appear. Click on the blue text condition. Your selection/s will appear on the right-hand side of the pop-up morbidity tree.

If the specific condition is not listed but can be included with a condition already identified, select **Other (specify)** from that specific field. Enter the condition in free text. If there is more than one condition that needs to be entered here, separate with a comma. **Save** before clicking **Back to Baby**.

If the specific condition cannot be included in any of the conditions already identified, select **Other** from the bottom of the pop-up morbidity tree. Enter the condition in the free text field.

If you wish to delete the **Other (specify)** entry, Click **X** next to **Delete**.

Ensure you **Save** the entry before clicking **Back to Baby**.

# 8.7 Baby discharge

The **Baby Discharge** section is located in **Postnatal and Discharge Details**. Complete the **Baby Discharge** section using text and the drop down and date boxes available.

- When completing the .....**fluid at any time from birth to discharge** question, a **Yes** response will prompt the drop down box. Select the appropriate fluid/s.
- When completing the .....**fluid 24hr prior to discharge** question, A **Yes** response will prompt the drop down box. Select the appropriate fluid/s.

Click Save.

# 9. Saving and validating

## 9.1 Saving woman/baby records

When a user completes a section (e.g.: Baby Birth Details, Mother's Details) or partially completes a section they should always save what has been entered into the QPDC Online form by clicking either of the **Save** buttons located at the top or bottom of the screen.

## 9.2 Validating woman/baby records

When a user completes a section (e.g. Baby Birth Details, Mother's Details) they should validate the data entered onto the QPDC Online form for the woman and associated baby/s records (that are created). Updating of any errors/warnings at the record level (as they occur) should greatly reduce the number of validations on validation reports when extracting data at the end of a reference period. PNO system functionality allows users to validate woman and associated baby records (that are created) at any stage whether complete or not.

To validate a woman and associated baby record/s, click on the **Validate This Record** button at the bottom or top of the screen. Click **OK** and you will be taken directly to the validation screen.

The validations for each field/question are grouped by section i.e. Mother's Details, Previous Pregnancy, and/or Present Pregnancy.

Identify the relevant validations that require attention. Return to the woman's record to amend the validations by clicking on the **Edit** button or the **Mother Record** button. You will be returned to the **Mother** screen where the amendments can then be made and saved. The **Edit** button will take you directly to the specific field that has flagged a validation exception in the Validation Log.

If there is a multiple birth flagged in the Validation Log, the baby number (twin 1 or twin 2) is displayed in the Baby No column. Amend validations for all babies of a multiple birth.

The validation report may be printed by clicking on **Printer Friendly** located under the Validation Log title.

All changes/updates (as a result of data validation) must be saved. Following changes/updates records should be re-validated to ensure the data is clean (no validation exceptions generated). Once the woman and associated baby record/s are completed and validated (with no validation exceptions) the perinatal record is now completed.

# 10. Print preview

The record (woman and associated baby records created) may be printed at any stage throughout the confinement. Any fields not completed will appear as **Not Stated**.

If the **Report Print Preview** button is clicked (whilst in a baby record) and that record has not been validated, the following message appears.



It is preferable to print after the validation process is complete.

Any printed QPDC Online form reports may then be distributed according to hospital policy e.g. filed in woman and baby charts.

The **Report Print Preview** tab is situated on the tool-bar of the **Mother's Details** and **Baby Birth Details** screens. It is available at any time when in the **Labour and Birth** and the **Postnatal and Discharge** screens.

The report (for the woman) will appear in the format below.

er ect Baby: ect Baby: Family Name TEST First Given Name TEST	Present pregnancy (Mother UR: 123456) Estimated Date of Confinement Date of Last Menstrual Period	
ck To Mother et Baby: elect	Estimated Date of Confinement Date of Last Menstrual Period	
et Baby: et Baby: Family Name TEST First Given Name TEST	Date of Last Menstrual Period	Not Stated/Linknown
Idect. V Family Name TEST First Given Name TEST	Height	Not Stated/Unknown
Family Name TEST First Given Name TEST		Not Stated/Unknown
Family Name TEST First Given Name TEST		Not Stated/Unknown
First Given Name TEST	veignt Date	Not Stated/Unknown
	DMI	Not Stated/Unknown
Second Given Name Not Stated/Unknown	initializa vaccine received unoughout the pregnancy :	NOT STATEG/OTIVITOWIT
U-No 402456	Destusie Vesine en value	- Nat Clated I Johnson
01 NO 123436	Pertussis vaccine received initiation when the pregnancy r	NOT Stated/Officiowit
Mother Dob Not Stated/Unknown	Gestation when vacchine Received	- Not Stated/Unknown
Admission Date Not Stated/Unknown	Anteriodal Cate	Not Stated/Officitowit
Idation Override Comment	Anternata care types	
Dob Estimated No	I Otal Anteriatal Visits	
	Antenatal Screening for Family Violance2	
	Antonial Screening for Prun lies?	
ers details (Mother UR: 123456)	Amenatal Scieening to Diug Use? What was the EDDS acces?	-
Direct of Dirth RAMAGA HOSPITAL	Was Antanatal screening using EBDC notformed?	-
Have Desidence Net Stated Lakerup	was Antenatal Screening Using EPDS performed?	Not Stated/Linknown
Ostal Residence Not Stated/Unknown	Any Medical Conditions	Not Stated/UTKNOWN
Suburb Not Stated/Unknown	Ann Description Conditions	- Not Stated/Unkname
Post code Not Stated/Unknown	Any Pregnancy Complications :	NOT Stated/Offknown
State Queensland	Pregnancy Complications	- Not Stated/Unknown
Mother's Country of Birth Not Stated/Unknown	Any Procedures or Operations :	NOT STATEWOTKHOWN
Indigenous Status Not Stated/Unknown	Proceedings of Operations	Not Stated/Unknown
Marital Status Not Stated/Unknown	Anisted Conception:	NOT STATEU/OTIKTIOWIT
Accomodation status of Mother Not Stated/Unknown	Assisted Conception Mendous Number of Illifectioned Scene	- Not Stated/Unknown
Antenatal transfer Transferred antenatally	Number of ordersound scans	-
Reason for Transfer Cervical shortening	Machar mastacency of a sound	
Time of Transfer Not Stated/Unknown	Assessment for Charlonicity Scan	-
Transferred from Not Stated/Unknown	Smoking during first 20 weeks of pregnancy	Not Stated/Unknown
Syphilis Not Stated/Unknown	Ciparettes per day during first 20 weeks	-
Immunoglobulin G (IgG) Not Stated/Unknown	Smoking cessation advice offered during first 20 weeks	-
Rubella Not Stated/Unknown	Smoking after 20 weeks of pregnancy	Not Stated/Unknown
Hepatitis B Not Stated/Unknown	Cigarettes per day after 20 weeks	-
Hepatitis C Not Stated/Unknown	Smoking cessation advice offered after 20 weeks	
man Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Not Stated/Unknown	Alcohol consumed first 20 weeks of pregnancy	Not Stated/Unknown
Blood group Not Stated/Unknown	Alcohol consumed number first 20 weeks of pregnancy	-
Rh Factor Not Stated/Unknown	Alcohol consumed frequency first 20 weeks of pregnancy	
Antibodies Not Stated/Unknown	Alcohol consumed after 20 weeks of pregnancy	Not Stated/Unknown
Other Serology Details Not Stated/Unknown	Alcohol consumed number after 20 weeks of pregnancy	-
	Alcohol consumed frequency after 20 weeks of pregnancy	
	Primary Maternity Model of Care	Not Stated/Unknown
ious pregnancy (Mother IIR: 123456)	Maternity Model of Care at onset of labour/caesarean	Not Stated/Unknown

				· · · ·	
Previous pregnancy (Mother UR:	R: 123456)	Mat	Maternity Model of Care a	at onset of labour/caesarea	n Not Stated/Unknown
Any Previous Pregnancies? Not St	Stated/Unknown				
Any Live or Still Births? -		Mother D	r Discharge (Motl	her UR: 123456)	
Last Birth Method(s) -					
Only livebirths -			Separation Type	Not Stated/Unknown	
Only stillbirths -			Transferred to		
Only miscarriages -			Discharge Date	Not Stated/Unknown	
Livebirth and stillbirth -		Continuit	nuity of midwifery care	-	
Livebirth and miscarriage -		Early	rly Discharge Program	Not Stated/Unknown	
Stillbirth and miscarriage -		Psycho	chosocial assessment	Not Stated/Unknown	
Livebirth, stillbirth and miscarriage -					
Total previous pregnancies -					
Previous Caesareans -					
Validation Overrides					
There are no validation overrides					
There are no validation overnues					
Mother: TEST, TEST, Mother UR: 123456 Moth	ther DOB:RECOR	RD HAS NOT BEEN VALIDATED			
L					

To change the Print Preview to display a Baby/s report, click on the **Select Baby** drop down arrow as displayed below.

A user can toggle between baby records when there are multiple births.

Click on the baby record required from the **Select Baby** drop down arrow in Print Preview as displayed below.

QUEENSLAND PERINATAL DATA COLLECTION MOTHER AND BABY REPORT (MR63D)					
Mother			P	Present pregnancy (Mother UR: M77777)	
Back To Mother				Estimated Date of Confinement	Not Stated
Select Baby:				Date of Last Menstural Period	Not Stated
-Select-		*		Height	170
-Select-				Weight	70
URN: B77777 Baby #: 1 DOB: Sun 01-DEC-2013 at 1000				BMI	24.22
URN: 999999 Baby #: 2 DOB:	Sun 02-FEB-20	14 at 1230		Antenatal Care	Yes
Second Given Name Ur No Mother Dob	MARIE M77777 05-SEP-1988	-		Antenatal Care types	Medical practitioner - Private - Gen Prostitioner
Admission Date	01-DEC-2013	1		Tatal Antonatal Visita	Practitioner
Validation Override Comment	-	]		Gestation At Einst Visits	16
Dob Estimated	No	]		Any Medical Conditions 2	Vec
Mothers details (Mother U	JR: M77777	•			Diarrhoea non-infectious Anaemia

A user can return to sections of the QPDC Online form at any time by Clicking on the **Back to Mother** button (whilst previewing the woman's record).

A user can return to Mother's Print Preview Report at any time by Clicking on the **Mother's Report** button.

A user can return to sections of the QPDC Online form at any time by Clicking on the **Labour Record**, **Baby's Birth Detail Record** and **Baby's Postnatal Record** buttons at the top of the screen (whilst previewing the Baby record).

QUEENSLAND PERINATAL DATA COLLECTION MOTHER AND BABY REPORT (MR63D)								
Mother's Report Labour Record Baby's Birth Detail Record Baby's Postnatal Record								
			F					
Back To Mother				Date of Birth	01-DEC-2013			
Change Raby UR	N: B77777 Baby #:	1 DOB: Sup 01-DEC-2013 at 1000		Indigenous Status	Neither Aboriginal nor Torres Strait Is. Origin			
change baby			11	Time Of Birth	10:00			
Baby No	1			Baby Weight gms	3000			
Baby Ur No	B77777			Gestation Weeks	40			
Mother's Name	PERFECT,LEESA			Gestation Days	0			
Mother's Ur No	M77777			Head Circumference	30.1			
			11	Length at Birth	50.2			
<u>I</u>			4	Plurality	Singleton			

To print, click on the printer icon in the top right corner of the screen.

All Sections of the Report now contain the unit record number of the woman and baby.

# 11. Validate data

From the **Main Menu** screen click **Validate Data**. This can also be accessed from all other screens using the **Validate Data** selection from the top toolbar.

🅦 🔏 Statistical Colle	ctions and 🧧 PD99 - Prod 🧧 PNO - PROD 🧔 EVA - J	prod 📓 QHIDS - prod 🎇 JIRA -SSB		
Queensland Government		Perinatal Data Co AYR HOSPIT	ollection FAL	USER: HSU_TEST4@HEALTH.QLD.GOV.AU Version: v4.8.4 PAT
Main Menu	User Accounts			
		Welcome to the	he Queensland Health Perinatal Data Collectio Your last successful login was on 01-AUG-2019 at 10:21 AM	n Web Portal
			Your last unsuccessful login was on 01-AUG-2019 at 8:43 AM	
		Main Menu Options	Notifications	
		Search/Create Mother Archived Mothers Validate Data Extract Data Reports	Message There are 116 current records created more than a year	1 - 1 Navigat ago that are incomplete <u>View Report</u> 1 - 1

In the **Facility** field, if your hospital is not displayed, click on the drop-down box, then select the facility/hospital you wish to validate.

In the **Period** field, click the drop-down box, then select the month you wish to validate.

There are two types of validations that can be run over the data for a selected reference period (month).

- Validations for Admitted Patients.
- Validations for records to be extracted.

# **11.1 Running validations**

The validation report will validate records for the specified month, as well as any previous months, where the baby is still admitted, **Validations for Admitted Patients**, or where the baby has been discharged, **Validations for records to be extracted**. Both validation reports run in the same manner as outlined below.

The records selected from the discharged patient validation will form part of the monthly QPDC extraction process.

- Click either Validations for Admitted Patients or Validations for records to be extracted.
- A confirmation message will appear.
- To Proceed: Click **OK**.
- If you do not wish to proceed: Click Cancel.
- If there are no records to validate, the following message will appear at the top of the screen.

There are no records to validate for the chosen period and facility

• If there are records to validate the following screen will appear.

Se	arch/Creat	h/Create Mother Archived Mothers Validate Data Extract Data Reports								
VALIDATION LOG										
	Printer Friendly         Mother MULTIPLE MOTHER         Facility ATHERTON HOSPITAL         Mother Record       Labour Record         Baby's Birth Details       Baby's Postnatal Record									
	Period	Date of Confinement	Mother Ur	Family Name	Baby No.	Туре	Message		Override R	leason
Edit	JUN-2010	006.01041540100	5565662	WARDON POLICE	Mother	INFO	Preser	t Pregnancy Validations		
Edit	JUN-2010	006 JULINI 520 DO	44444444	WEAT THE REPORT	Mother	WARNING	Antenatal	care provided by midwife in private practice. Confirm or amend	Confirm	
Edit	JUN-2010	006 JULIAI 540 100	14444444		Mother	WARNING	Assisted of confirm or	ssisted conception with limited antenatal visits is unusual. Please Remove Confirmation		Confirmation
Edit	JUN-2010	006 JUDNI 540 100	Salada a a a	NATIONAL DE C	Mother	END				
Edit	JUN-2010	000.0004.500100	14444444	WARK CONTRACTOR	1	INFO	Labou	r and Birth Validations		
Edit	JUN-2010	000 JULINI 520 DO	S Andread and a factor of a	NAME AND TAXABLE IN CONTRACTOR OF	1	FATAL	The Baby	The Baby's Time of Birth is a required field.		unknown time of birth, BBA and family does not speak English

NB: Mother UR & Family Name have been blocked out for user guide display purposes only. These fields will contain data in the operational setting.

- If there are data validations requiring confirmation that the data is correct, please Click on the **Confirm** button. To remove the confirmation, click on **confirmation** button.
- If the information is unable to be obtained, click in the free text box alongside the overde button and enter the reason. Once the reason for the error is entered click on the the overde button. This must be performed for each of these types of error. This option is only available for Deputy and Primary users.

To select validations for Individual Records, Click the **Mother** drop down box and click on the woman you wish to validate as displayed above. Once a woman is selected, the Validation Log will update accordingly only displaying validations for that record.

The Validation Log allows you to

- Identify all Mother/Baby Records requiring validation for the facility you have selected.
- Select the individual Mother Record for the facility you have selected.
- Access the Mother Record, Baby's Labour Record and Baby's Postnatal Record to correct validations.
- Re-Run the Validation Report.
- Print the Validation Report.

After identifying the relevant validations that require editing, return to the woman's record to amend the validations by clicking on the **Edit** button.

## **11.2 Printing the Validation Log**

When amending multiple validations, it is recommended you print the Validation Log as this will save you time from having to re-run the validation report each time you amend a field.

Click Printer Friendly.

	VALIDATION LOG						
Facility:	ATHERTON HOSPITAL						
Period:	FEB-2014 🔽 Filters Period Entries in Log						
Mother:	-ALL-						
	Printer Friendly						

The report will now be in a format that can be printed.

If there are validations flagged for multiple births, the baby number (twin 1 or twin 2) is displayed in the **Baby No** column.

All changes/updates (as a result of data validation) must be saved.

Following changes/updates records should be re-validated to ensure the data is clean (no validation exceptions generated).

Once all the women and associated baby record/s are completed and validated (with no validation exceptions) for the reference period the perinatal data is ready to extract.

# 12. Extract data

Extraction of data is only available to Primary User and Deputy User levels.

Prior to extracting, run the validation report to ensure all outstanding validations have been amended. See section <u>11. Validate data</u>

Once there are no outstanding validations, the month can then be extracted.

Enter the **Main Menu** screen. Click **Extract Data**. The **Extract Data** screen displays the Current Period due, Due Date (date extract is due) and Status (extracted or not yet extracted). From the **Extract Data** screen, ensure the correct facility is viewed. Click on the drop-down arrow to select the period (month) you wish to extract.

A pop-up box appears showing the number of Baby records and Mother records that will be included in the extract. If the number is what is expected for the month click on **OK**. The extraction process is now complete.

If the number is not what you are expecting, click Cancel to go back and check the records

late Data	Extract E	Data Rej	ports		
	Current Perio	MONTH od: MAY-2015	LY EXTR Due Date: 0	ACTIO	N PROCESS 15 status: Not Yet Extracted
	Fa	cliity: BAMAG This option wi The Data Extra RecordType 	A HOSPITAL action will pro- Month FEB-2015 FEB-2015 o proceed?	rds to a file cess the fo Rows  1 1	e for the selected facility and period.
					OK Cancel

# **13. Archived mothers**

When a mother/baby record has been extracted for a month the record is no longer available via the **Search/Create** record function. The record will now be available as a read only printable record via the Archived Mothers function.

From the **Main Menu** screen Click **Archived Mothers**. Archived Mothers screen can also be accessed from all other menus using the **Archived Mothers** selection from the top toolbar.

The search functions to locate an archived woman record are the same as those to find a search/create mother record.

The Mother's record in printable format will appear.

# 14. Reports

Reports can be run by all Primary User and Deputy Users for all current and extracted records.

If you have access to more than one facility, you will need to select the correct facility.

Regardless of the type of report to be run, the date ranges need to be selected.

Search Criteria					
Facility	-Select-		~		
Confinement Date From		(DD-MON-YYYY)			
Confinement Date To		mm(DD-MON-YYYY)			
Generate Report					

# 14.1 Monthly Births Report

The monthly birth report identifies the number of mothers/babies by month.

N	onthly Birth	Details								
										1-3
	Period	Mothers Giving Birth	Babies Born	Admitted Mothers	Discharged Mothers	Discharged Babies	Mothers Validated That Still Have Errors	Mothers Validated With No Errors	Extracted Mothers	Extracted On
	March 2015	23	23	23	21	21	4	17	21	08-MAY-2015
	February 2015	11	11	11	11	11	0	0	0	30-MAR-2015
	January 2015	20	20	19	19	19	0	0	0	06-MAR-2015

# 14.2 Birth Report

The birth report identifies the number of livebirths and stillbirths in the selected date range.

Birth Report						
	LIVEBIRTHS	STILLBIRTHS				
	1	0				
	<u>Download</u>					

This can be downloaded as Excel and saved for future reference

by clicking **Download** and **Open**.



The report will open in Excel and the user can save it the file to their directory.

# 14.3 Mother and Baby Details Report

The mother and baby details report can report all woman and baby data items by selecting the required data items.

After generating a report, click Actions, then Select Columns



The Do Not Display column on the left lists all of the data items available for selection. The Display in Report column on the right lists those data items selected by the User to be displayed in the report.



Click on required data item and then the > symbol. This will move the data item to the Display in Report column on the right.





Continue this process until all data items that you require have been selected.

If a data item has been incorrectly selected, highlight it and click the < arrow to de-select it back to the column on the left.

Select Columns			
Do Not Display		Display in Report	
Do Not Display Presentation Presentation Other Reason for forceps/vacuum Antibiotics (Cesari) Water Binh anned Water Binh anned Hembrane State Hembrane State Hembrane State Placental abnomality Cord Cervical Diatation Genital trauma Surgical repair Expision Nonpharmacological analgesia Anaesthesia Anaesth	Rer	Display in Report Date of Confinement Baby UN No Baby No Bathy No Bathy State Mathematic Applied State Labour Onset Perineum Remove	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Babyweight Gestation weeks:days			

Clicking >> or << will de-select all of the data items across to the opposite side.

When all required data items have been selected, click Apply.

Mother / Baby Details	s Report					
<b>~</b>		Go Actions	Do	wnload		
Date of Confinement	<u>Mother UR</u>	<u>Baby Ur No</u> Bab	<u>y No</u>	<u>Birth Status</u>	Method Of Birth	Labour Onset
16-JAN-2019	192600	192511	1	Born alive	Forceps	Spontaneous
08-JAN-2019	192500	192501	1	Still born	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
03-JAN-2019	192400	192401	1	Still born	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
18-DEC-2018	192200	192222	1	Still born	Vaginal non - instrumental	Induced
18-DEC-2018	192300	192301	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
04-DEC-2018	19201	192111	1	Still born	Vaginal non - instrumental	Induced
07-MAR-2018	301018	3010181	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Induced
07-MAR-2018	1212	12121	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
03-FEB-2018	192011	1920111	1	Born alive	Lower Segment Caesarean Section	No labour (Caesarean section)
25-JAN-2018	192010	1920101	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
22-JAN-2018	192009	11114444	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
18-JAN-2018	192008	1920081	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
11-JAN-2018	192007	1920071	1	Born alive	Forceps	Spontaneous
10-JAN-2018	192006	1920061	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
03-JAN-2018	192005	1920051	1	Born alive	Vaginal non - instrumental	Spontaneous
						1 - 15 of 15

Download the report by clicking **Download**.

Click Open.

The report will open in Excel and the user can save it the file to their directory.

# 15. Important points to remember

The information collected in the QPDC Online Form (through the PNO system) is the same as the paper MR63D form.

### 15.1 Screens

Perinatal Online consists of four screens

- 1. Mother Antenatal screen (woman's discharge details at the bottom of this screen).
- 2. Labour and Birth.
- 3. Baby Birth Details.
- 4. Postnatal and Discharge Details.

### 15.2 Save

When the initial woman's details have been entered, **Save** the record to ensure the data is saved in the PNO system. The following buttons will appear:



The pop-up Morbidity trees (for conditions etc.) will not function properly if the record is not saved.

When entering the Labour and Birth screen, enter the baby UR or date of birth and then **Save**. The following buttons will appear:

Back to Mother         Cancel         Delete         Save           Validate This Record         Report Print Preview	Baby Mother Id: 771432
Baby Details Screens  1. Labour and Birth (Baby's page) 2. Baby Birth Details 3. Postnatal and Discharge Details	Mother's Name: TEST, TEST TEST Baby No: Baby's UR No: Date of Birth 01-JAN-2022

## 15.3 Date fields

All date fields must be entered using the calendar format.

If the baby's date of birth hasn't been entered, ignore not valid at baby's date of birth validations.

## 15.4 Save and validate

Save and validate at the end of each screen.

Save record/s before leaving your workstation.

# 16. Abbreviations

AIHW	Australian Institute of Health and Welfare
ICD-10-AM	International Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems, 10 <sup>th</sup> Revision, Australian Modification
ICN	Intensive Care Nursery
MaCCS	Maternity Care Classification System
MR63D	Queensland Perinatal Data Collection Form
PNO	Perinatal Online Form
QHDD	Queensland Health Data Dictionary
QPDC	Queensland Perinatal Data Collection
SCIU	Statistical Collections and Integration Unit
SCN	Special Care Nursery
SSB	Statistical Services Branch
UR	Unit Record Number
US	Ultrasound